
 

Page 1 of 6 
Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 

April 11, 2013 
    

CITY OF ELIZABETH CITY 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 
THURSDAY, April 11, 2013 
4:30 PM 
 
Chairman Calliotte called the meeting to order with the following members present:  Jim 
Calliotte, Gordon Adams, Richard Boyd, Roy Golden, Dorothy Rosenke and Marian Stokes.   
Also present were Angela Cole, Sr. Planner and Dawn Harris, recorder.   An introduction of the 
Commission members was made.  It was stated for the record that the Commission had a quorum 
with all members present. 
 
Chairman Calliotte asked if there were any revisions or corrections to the agenda.  There were no 
revisions or corrections.  Chairman Calliotte asked for a vote to adopt the agenda.    ALL IN 
FAVOR:  CALLIOTTE, ADAMS, BOYD, GOLDEN, ROSENKE and STOKES.  
MOTION PASSED. 
 
Chairman Calliotte asked for approval or corrections of the minutes from the January 1, 2013 
meeting.  There was a change on the bottom of page two, third line: word should be viable.  Also 
a change on page one, second paragraph, second sentence, third word:  word should be no. There 
were no other corrections.  Motion was made to approve the January minutes.  Ms. Golden 
seconded the motion.  ALL IN FAVOR:  CALLIOTTE, ADAMS, BOYD, GOLDEN, 
ROSENKE and STOKES.  MOTION PASSED. 
 
Prior to today’s meeting, notification was sent to neighbors living within 100’ of the property in 
question.   Commission members received a copy of each application and were to visit the site.  
North Carolina law provides that persons have an opportunity to address an application; thus the 
Commission conducts a public hearing on the application.  During the hearing the Commission 
receives evidence to determine that proposed changes are not incongruous with the special 
character of the historic district or the historic property.  They review this evidence against 
guidelines listed in the City’s ordinance before issuing a Certificate of Appropriateness.   Each 
application is heard the same way.  The judicial format of the hearing requires that they be 
impartial.  Any written Staff comments are evidence presented just as any other evidence.  If any 
Commission member has had reason to discuss the specific details of the application, they ask to 
be excused from hearing the application.   
 
Because of the quasi-judicial format of the hearings, the Commission hears evidence and judges 
whether the change is not incongruous.  The Commission is required by North Carolina law to 
swear in persons who speak before the Commission and offer evidence.   
 
First item on the agenda was Application HP-01-13 by Pasquotank County for property located 
at 206 East Main Street.  The applicant is proposing to construct a new 22’ x 14’ storage shed.  
This shed is to be located at the back of the Pasquotank County Courthouse.  Mr. David 
Smithson and Mr. Pug Taylor came forward as representatives for this application.  They were 
sworn in by Ms. Harris. 
 
Chairman Calliotte asked for Staff’s report.  Ms. Cole gave the following report. 



 

Page 2 of 6 
Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 

April 11, 2013 
    

 
STAFF REPORT 
Case number HP-01-13 pertains to property located at 206 East Main Street within the 
Downtown Historic District.  It is approximately an acre.  This area of downtown consists of 
offices and retail uses.  The primary structure on this site is the courthouse for Pasquotank 
County converted to offices and chambers for the public commission.  The original structure was 
erected approximately in 1882.  It had additions in 1979.  There was a rear addition constructed 
as a Works Projects Administration in 1938.  Staff provided for the Commission photographs of 
the brick pattern on all three of the buildings, as well as a snap shot indicating the approximate 
location of the proposed structure.   
 
The petitioner is requesting to construct a 308 square-foot single-story storage shed to be placed 
at the northwest corner of the site, abutting the accessibility ramp.  The structure will have 
dimensions of 22’ x 14’ x 14’ complete with concrete floor, metal stud walls, fire rated sheathing 
and side-gabled roof.  There will be installation of brick veneer exterior to closely match the 
existing Courthouse structure.  The applicant has provided a sample brick.  There will be the 
installation of asphalt roof shingles of the same type and color as the existing Courthouse 
structure.  The project also includes installation of 8’ x 8’ Overhead Door® 416 Series steel 
sectional (garage) door with a white color finish.  Lastly, the installation of Republic Doors and 
Frames® 1 ¾ DM Series steel single-entry door.  The applicant provided spec sheets on both the 
doors.  Staff also had available additional photographs of this site. Summary of the National Park 
Service recommendation was included in the Staff Analysis.  City Staff consulted with the 
Regional SHPO office on this project to get their recommendation/suggestion on what type of 
brick pattern and mortar to use.  The recommendation was that it should match the addition 
structure that was added in the 1970’s rather than the original Courthouse building and the 1938 
building.  The mortar should be of a lighter color not the grayer color that is available now.  
 
Staff recommends that as a condition for approval the storage shed be in keeping with the 
National Park Service, SHPO and Staff recommendation that the construction and placement 
satisfy all applicable building codes and local zoning regulation according to City Ordinance, 
including site plan review. 
 
That concluded Ms. Cole’s report.  She offered to answer any questions.  There were no 
questions for Staff from the Commission.  Chairman Calliotte asked for comment from the 
petitioners. 
 
Mr. Pug Taylor, Maintenance Director for Pasquotank County came forward.  He stated that he 
is responsible for all of the housekeeping.  They have an immense problem with storage.  He 
stated that they have a lot of machines--machines that do floors that wax and strip, etc.  They 
have to store these machines in their old boiler room and also all of their cleaning supplies.  In 
light of the recent OSHA situation with the City the storage is an issue with OSHA.  You have to 
have a certain amount of space around all of your electrical panels; which are in the boiler room.  
Also, throughout the Courthouse all of the closets are filled with equipment and cleaning 
supplies.  Mr. Taylor stated that plans are to store all of their equipment and cleaning supplies in 
this proposed building.  He stated that they would put lights in the building and probably a small 
heater.  They are not interested in keeping the building air conditioned.  They plan to use brick 



 

Page 3 of 6 
Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 

April 11, 2013 
    

and to match is as close as possible that they can to the Courthouse with the same type of shingle 
as on the Courthouse addition.   
 
Ms. Golden asked about the ventilation with all of the chemicals.  Mr. Taylor stated that the 
building will be ventilated.  It is part of standard building code.  Ms. Golden asked if the storage 
was just for the Courthouse.  Mr. Taylor stated that the supplies they get are also used in the 
Library, Public Safety and Register of Deeds/Tax building.  He stated that those buildings do not 
have storage facilities either. 
 
Chairman Calliotte stated just for clarification, in terms of the structure itself, the gable end will 
face Elliott Street.  Mr. Taylor stated yes.  The shed doors and the entry door will be facing the 
back wall of the Courthouse.  Mr. Taylor stated yes.  Chairman Calliotte stated that the structure 
itself seems to be devoid of any architectural interest.  Mr. Taylor stated that they wanted to put 
cornice around the structure to make it a little more decorative.  He stated that he had to redo all 
the entrances to the Courthouse and he knows that plastic and the new PVC wood is not allowed 
in historic areas and that he assumes that would apply for this application.  He wanted to confirm 
that he would need to use wood and paint.  Commission members stated yes. 
 
Mr. Adams stated on the drawing a stairway is shown and a new addition.  He asked if that was 
part of the renovations.  Mr. David Smithson stated it is actually the site plan done in 1979. After 
speaking with Planning Staff, it was determined that it was ok to use this plan instead of having 
to incur the expense of having to survey the site.  So, there is no new addition or stairway.   
 
Ms. Golden stated regarding the doors that she had not seen that they were to be white.  There 
are no white doors on the Courthouse.  Mr. Taylor stated that they could make the doors any 
color the Commission would like.  The doors on the Courthouse are blue.  Ms. Cole stated that 
the doors come from the factory like that.  Everyone agreed that the doors would be blue. 
 
Chairman Calliotte stated that in the drawing the entry door looked like a slab door.  Mr. 
Smithson stated that they were trying to go with a metal door because of the chemicals they will 
be storing.  Chairman Calliotte asked that they match the panel doors. 
 
Ms. Golden asked about the security for the structure.  Mr. Taylor stated it will be deadbolt locks 
and slide locks on the overhead door will be standard. 
 
Chairman Calliotte stated that he first had concern because the building had no windows at all, 
but when he saw the site and that the back faces Colonial it may look worse with windows.  He 
asked if there was a possibility to put a window in on the Elliott Street side to break it up some.  
Ms. Stokes stated the biggest problem they have is security.  Mr. Taylor stated that they would 
rather not put windows.  He mentioned that he has problems with people stealing toilet paper 
from the bathrooms.  Mr. Taylor stated that they would put in a gable and vent in each end.  The 
Commission agreed that the gable and vent would be satisfactory. 
 
Ms. Golden asked if this site was the only location that the County has for this storage facility.  
Mr. Taylor stated yes.  They have looked all around but because of zoning regulations there was 
really no where else to put the building. 
 



 

Page 4 of 6 
Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 

April 11, 2013 
    

Chairman Calliotte asked if the brick sample was as close as they could get to the addition.  Mr. 
Taylor stated that is what they had Elizabeth City Brick match a couple of years ago when they 
were patching a wall and it was as close as they could match the existing brick.  Mr. Taylor 
stated that they will check again to make sure they get the closest match for the brick and mortar. 
 
Ms. Golden asked if the pattern of the brick was decided upon.  Mr. Taylor stated they are going 
to just use a running bond 79/80 it is called antique brick. 
 
Mr. Taylor added that they will put one light between the Courthouse and the storage building 
for security purposes.  It will be attached to the building and will match the lights that are on the 
Courthouse.  They also have employees that work late and will need the light to go in and out of 
the building.  Ms. Cole confirmed which light they will match and pointed it out in a picture to 
the Commission. 
 
Chairman Calliotte gave a review of the project as follows: 
 
 Brick and mortar pattern and brick and mortar color to match as close as possible to 

matching the 1979/80 addition. 
 It was not discussed, but Chairman Calliotte confirmed with Mr. Taylor that the structure 

will not come out any further toward Elliott Street than the Courthouse.  So, the limit will be 
equal placement with the primary structure. 

 Colors will be cream and blue that matched everything on the Courthouse. 
 The entry door will be a steel six panel door. 
 There will be a round window (or whatever looks feasible) toward the top eave on the Elliott 

Street side.  
 The garage will be blue. 
 The light fixture is to match the Courthouse fixtures. 
 The cornice is to match the crown molding on Courthouse. 
 Roof shingles are to match the Courthouse. 
 
Chairman Calliotte called for a motion. 
 
Mr. Boyd made a motion to APPROVE Application HP-01-13 as presented.  Ms. Golden 
seconded the motion.  ALL IN FAVOR:  CALLIOTTE, ADAMS, BOYD, GOLDEN, 
ROSENKE and STOKES.  MOTION PASSED. 
 
Ms. Stokes asked Staff what had happened to Doris Johnson (she was suppose to be present at 
this meeting).  Ms. Cole stated that Ms. Johnson did not file for this month; however, she has 
been working with the Building Inspector on several elements of the interior.  Ms. Cole stated 
that she has talked to a new and different architect regarding Ms. Johnson’s project.  It seems 
there was some issue with the architect she had and her General Contractor.  Ms. Cole stated that 
with the new architect she believes the Commission will see a completely different vision for the 
exterior.   
 
Ms. Cole stated that she had the pleasure of meeting Ms. Bartose from the Raleigh SHPO office 
along with Scott and Reid were there.  They mentioned that they still want to work with Ms. 



 

Page 5 of 6 
Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 

April 11, 2013 
    

Johnson as far as tax credits.  Ms. Cole made opportunity to speak with Ms. Johnson about it.  
Ms. Cole stated that she had received an email from Ms. Bartose that Ms. Johnson is back on 
with the tax credit.  
 
Ms. Cole stated that ECDI proposed to City Council a Music Park.  She has invited Rebecca 
Cross to give the same presentation to this Commission since the area proposed is in the 
Downtown Historic District.  Ms. Cross had a conflict and was not able to do the presentation at 
this meeting, but Staff certainly wants to keep it available for the next meeting the Commission 
has.  She is not at the point where she is ready to file for a Certificate of Appropriateness.  Ms. 
Cole stated that there is discuss as to where the final placement will be.  If the Music Park is 
moved to Waterfront Park, it will be outside the Commission’s purview.  If she stays at 
Mariner’s Wharf, it will come before the Commission. 
 
Ms. Cole stated that she has received an inquiry from the manager at Logan Rayes for a Sunday 
Dog Day in the alleyway.  At this time, she is trying to work through ALE.  If there is alcohol 
service the alleyway has to be closed and secured.  Of course, they want people to be able to 
walk directly there…they can’t bring their dogs into the restaurant.  Ms. Cole stated that she is 
not certain it will move forward but if there is a change to any part or element of the alleyway it 
will be brought before the Commission.   
 
Ms. Cole stated that a Certificate was approved administratively for property in the 500 Block of 
West Main Street for Bob Schenck’s residence.  They will be painting within the approved color 
palette.  It will be another yellow house. 
 
Ms. Stokes asked Ms. Cole Jim had spoken with her regarding the house on the corner of Church 
and Culpepper Streets.  They are doing a lot of renovations.  Ms. Stokes stated that the owner 
had some questions and she had referred him to Ms. Cole. Ms. Cole stated that she has received 
some phone calls regarding fences and windows. 
 
Chairman Calliotte stated that he, Ms. Golden and Ms. Cole had met with Ramona Bartose.  She 
is the Deputy Director from Raleigh.  She is a very pleasant person.  She is relatively new and 
has never been to Elizabeth City.  They were giving her the grand tour of places she has not been 
to yet.  Ms. Golden stated that she was very enthusiastic and very knowledgeable and educated in 
the field.  Chairman Calliotte stated the architectural guideline project was mentioned.  SHPO 
said that farming the guideline project out could cost up to $20,000.  They were encouraging to 
the Commission to apply for a grant to assist in covering the cost.  The grant would be a 40% 
matching grant.  Ms. Cole stated that what she can do on her end is get with our grant writer, a 
representative from the HPC and Reid and Scott.  They offered templates for the actual grant 
application.  The application is due in February.  Ms. Cole stated that what she needs the 
Commission to do is help push this agenda with our governing body.  Chairman Calliotte stated 
that he thinks the Commission does have a good start for support on Council as there are Council 
members on the ECHNA board. 
 
Chairman Calliotte stated that there will be a joint HPC/ECHNA workshop on Saturday May 
11th at St. Phillips.  They will cover things such as the State Grant and the ECHNA Grant.  There 
will be people attending that are not in the local district.  Chairman Calliotte suggested that the 



 

Page 6 of 6 
Historic Preservation Commission Meeting 

April 11, 2013 
    

people in the National District to be told that they can get assistance from Staff regarding colors, 
etc. 
 
Mr. Boyd asked if a letter could be mailed to an owner whose property is falling apart.  Ms. Cole 
stated yes.  Mr. Boyd stated it is the house at the corner of Persse and Main Streets.  Mr. Boyd 
stated that the City is going to loose a big beautiful home.  Ms. Cole stated that she has been on 
the Building Inspectors just for the Minimum Housing element side of it.  The Demolition by 
Neglect Ordinance is tied to the Minimum Housing.  She stated she can send notification to the 
property owner while working on a physical inspection of the property.   
 
With there being no further business, meeting was adjourned. 
 
Respectfully submitted, Dawn Harris, Recorder 


